
 PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL  
 CITY COMMITTEE 
 MEETING OF MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2009 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL 
CITY COMMITTEE, HELD ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2009 IN THE PRESCOTT 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT PRESCOTT CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ, 
PRESCOTT ARIZONA 
    
1. Call to Order  
 

Chairman Gilliss called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Gilliss; Elisabeth Ruffner; Councilman Bob Bell 

(left at 1:15 p.m.); Nancy Burgess; Deborah Thurston (arrived at 1:10 p.m.); 
Lindsey Mills; Dave Maurer;  

 
 MEMBERS ABSENT: Karen Churchill; Patti Ezell; Don Shaffer. 
 
 GUESTS PRESENT: Karen Churchard; Ann Sterling; J.C. Trujillo; Carlo Pastore; 

Marty Borgelt; Ray Lesniak. 
 
 STAFF PRESENT: Becky Garvin; Liz Burke. 
 
 2.    Approval of minutes of the August 17, 2009 meeting 

 
Councilman Bell noted a few corrections to be made: page 2, next to last 
paragraph, change “Dan” to “Don” and page 4, last paragraph, change  “Banks” 
to “Barks.” 
 
Chairman Gilliss reviewed corrections/additions she had made to the draft 
minutes circulated after the last meeting which were based on communication  
received requesting clarifications of statements made involving the rodeo and 
related  plans. 
 
Regarding those clarifications, Mills reiterated that the Centennial Committee 
began from the Prescott Area Coalition of Tourism (PACT) desiring to create 
opportunities for tourism. She noted that, as Ruffner had previously mentioned, 
except for a City Legacy project or two, it is not the Committee’s responsibility to 
produce events.  Community groups are responsible for planning and carrying 
out their activities, and the Centennial Committee will assist in promoting those 
events. 
 
Members agreed that the role of the Committee was to assist in promotion of the 
events, not to dictate when they would occur. 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 2 
 

 
Consensus was to approve the minutes as amended/corrected. 

 
7.   New Business 
 

Resignation of City Council Representative, Bob Bell 
 
Chairman Gilliss asked to discuss the last item on the agenda, as it involves  
Councilman Bell who needed to leave the meeting early. She reported that since 
Bell had announced that he will not seek reelection as a Councilman, he must 
resign as the City Council’s representative on the Committee. 
 
Chairman Gilliss reminded Councilman Bell that there is one vacant Citizen-at-
Large position on the Committee and that he would be welcome to fill that 
vacancy, but Bell stated that he had decided not to continue as a Committee 
member.  He continued that it had been a pleasure to serve on the Committee 
and added that he would take responsibility for asking the Council to appoint 
someone to serve in his stead prior to next month’s meeting. 
 
Ruffner asked for clarification on how Councilman Bell’s replacement would be 
selected. Chairman Gilliss responded that Committee members were officially 
appointed by the Council, and a replacement would therefore need to be 
selected by the Council.  
 

 3.   Introduction of Guest Speaker: Karen Churchard, Director, Arizona Centennial 
Commission  
 

Presentation 
    
Chairman Gilliss introduced Karen Churchard, Director of the Arizona Centennial 
Commission, jointly serving as a Deputy Director of the Arizona Department of 
Tourism. Gilliss reported that she, Nancy Burgess, and County Centennial 
Chairman, Ann Sterling, had lunched with Ms. Churchard during which Ms. 
Churchard had discussed the questions the Committee had requested responses 
to. 
 
Ms. Churchard gave a PowerPoint presentation to the Committee, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A. Chairman Gilliss thanked 
Ms. Churchard for a very informative presentation and asked if the Committee 
could receive a copy of the text, as it had given the members many good ideas. 

 
Ruffner reported that the Elks Opera House had been officially approved for its 
use the week of February 14 in 2011 and 2012 for both the kick-off and 
culmination activities. 
 

 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 3 
 

Question/Answer Period [Attachment 3] 
 

Maurer asked if the list of questions previously prepared for Ms. Churchard by 
the Committee had been answered during the lunch meeting, and Gilliss 
responded that they had been and that a report on that discussion would be 
circulated to Committee members.  She also reported that each of the Centennial 
groups around the State are being asked to have a representative available to 
work with Ms. Churchard’s office, and that, as chairman, she had agreed to serve 
in that capacity, with the Committee’s approval, which was granted 

 
 4.   Reports/Updates: 
 

Application for use of Elks Theater for Centennial kick-off and culminating 
events [Attachment 4A] (Ruffner) 

 
 Chairman Gilliss noted that Ruffner had already mentioned that approval had 

been granted to hold the Centennial kick-off and culminating event at the Elks 
Theater. 

 
Library Viewerie: Clarification of dates and space (Gilliss) 

  –   February 2011 or February 2012 (or other?) 
  –   Total space? Half? 
  
 Chairman Gilliss reported that she had received an inquiry from Toni Kaus, 

Library Director, asking for a preferred date for a Centennial display in the 
library’s Viewerie, either February 2011 or February 2012, and whether we would 
want to use the whole space or half of it. After brief discussion it was agreed to 
mount a kick-off display in February 2011 and to use the entire display area.  
Chairman Gilliss will convey that information to Ms. Kaus. 

 
Schedule of Quarterly Report to City Council (Gilliss) 

  – October?  Postpone until after November elections? 
 
Chairman Gilliss reminded the Committee that it had been previously decided 
that she would make a quarterly report to the City Council and noted that the next 
report would be due in October.  She recommended that, due to the upcoming 
election, the report be delayed until the new Council members are in place. It 
was agreed that the next report should be made in November as soon after the 
election as the Council agenda allows. 
 

City Website (Burgess) 
  – Progress on City History page: Time Line 
  – Implementation of Centennial page? 

    
Burgess said there was no report. 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 4 
 

State Centennial Stamp Project (Gilliss, Sente) 
  – Coordinating meeting with County/Ann Sterling 
   

Chairman Gilliss noted that a report on the Stamp Project had been added to the 
handouts. She suggested that, since there were a number of unanticipated 
aspects of the project to consider, and due to the length of today’s agenda, that 
everyone review the report and be ready to discuss it at the next meeting.  
 
Gilliss quickly reviewed that the group meeting about the Stamp Project – Frank 
Sente, Ann Sterling, and herself -- had concluded that:  1) the First Day Issue 
would not necessarily happen on February 14; 2) school involvement may 
include K-12 or just the fourth grade; and 3) the stamp unveiling will require a 
huge event and must be carried out in conjunction with Karen Churchard, who 
will provide more information which the Committee will want to consider. 
                                                                                     
In response to Ruffners’s question asking if the County Chairman had included 
County planning in the discussion, Chairman Gilliss said that she had and that 
the City sub-committee would be working closely with the County, including 
capitalizing on the County Superintendent’s enthusiasm for the project. 
 
 – Establishment of ad hoc sub-committee 
 
This topic was covered under item 6.B later in the meeting. 

 
City Centennial Logo Project  

– Planning meeting and promotional guidelines [Attachment 4B] (Garvin, 
Gilliss) 

– Targets for and progress on implementation, i.e. e-mail, print, radio, TV 
(Thurston, Ezell, Lin) 

 
Thurston reported that, following the Logo Project planning meeting held on 
September 2, everyone in town who might be interested had received information 
on the logo project via e-mail. Radio stations and newspaper coverage will follow.  
The invitation to participate has gone out to all the colleges and all of the artists 
and organizations whose contact information Thurston had or could generate. 
 
Chairman Gilliss reported that, in addition to those Thurston has contacted 
directly, she, Gilliss, is scheduled to be on Steve Blair’s radio program on  
Wednesday, and that she has  calls in to schedule a radio interview with Mary 
Ann Suttles  and a TV spot with Lew and Tanya on AZTV. 

 
Ruffner asked if the Logo Sub-Committee had determined a selection process for 
the final determination, and Gilliss responded that the committee will be 
developing a procedure at its next meeting. Ruffner suggested that it remain 
anonymous to the community. 

 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 5 
 
5.   Community Outreach: 
 

Progress on e-mail list (Shaffer) 
  – Compilation and City staff inputting of addresses 
  – Possibility of proceeding in increments 
 
 Chairman Gilliss reported that Shaffer could not be here today, so the Outreach 

Committee report would be incomplete.  She had asked him, however, about the 
progress on compiling the e-mail list to send inquiries and information to groups 
in the community to obtain information on their interest in participating in the 
Centennial.  She learned that there are three lists; an A list, B list and now a C 
list, although she didn’t know the content of the classifications, and that someone 
from the City staff is or will be inputting the names from the A list into the 
computer.  

 
 Burgess said that she believed that the A list consists of the premier businesses 

that would probably be the most interested in participating; the B list would be the 
smaller businesses, and the C list would be smaller organizations and groups. 
She said that Don is not sending requests for indications of interest to every 
organization and business that he has received information for.  

 
 Discussion was held on the rationale for not sending information to everyone. 

Chairman Gilliss said that she believed that when the process was begun the 
intention was to get as much information out to as many people as possible. It 
was agreed that this was a policy issue and should have further discussion. 

 
Review of edited Information Release [Attachment 5] (Gilliss) 
Dissemination Time Line (Shaffer) 

 
Due to continuation of the discussion on a policy to clarify recipients, the 
Information Release and Dissemination Time Line topics were not addressed. 

 
 A discussion did arise on the need for a policy if the Committee intends to sell 

merchandise. 
 

Public Appearances: 
  – Business meeting (Shaffer) 
  – Ruffner radio show and follow up (Ruffner, Gilliss) 
 

Shaffer was not present to report on his presentation. 
 

Chairman Gilliss thanked Ruffner for the opportunity to be on her radio show, and 
added that, as a result of that appearance, she got two very positive responses 
regarding Centennial participation: Rich Longfield, who plays in a band here, 
indicated an interest in putting together a Centennial Band concert of music from 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 6 
 

the past hundred years; and she was invited to speak to the Prescott Area 
Realtors Association in October. 

   
Possible PowerPoint presentation? 

 
Chairman Gilliss said that she is now being asked to make presentations to 
various groups and that others will likely be asked to do so as well.  She 
suggested that a PowerPoint presentation be might be developed so all 
presenters will be sharing the same information. Burgess agreed that 
consistency was important.  Burke offered to help Chairman Gilliss prepare a 
PowerPoint presentation if she would provide the information to be included. 

 
6.   Review/Action re Establishment of Sub-Committees (Gilliss) 
 
 Along with the Agenda, Chairman Gilliss had distributed a description of each of 

the subcommittees proposed at the last meeting, which included committee 
duties and membership. She briefly reviewed each and asked for comments. 

 
      A.   Standing Sub-committees: 
 
  i.   Community Outreach: [Attachment 6Ai] 
   – Clarification of purpose 
   – Suggestions/Input? 
   – Membership? 
 
  No comments were given. 
 
  ii.   Legacy Project: [Attachment 6Aii] 
   – Clarification of state roles re AHAC and ACC 
   – Deletion of “Prescott: AZ’s Centennial City” as legacy project 
   – Suggestions/Input? 
   – Membership? 
    
 Ruffner noted that this description should identify, clarify, and 

define the two separate procedures for designation by AHAC of 
Legacy Projects and the sanction by AZCC of Special Events.  She 
added that clarification of these procedures is needed from the 
State. 

 
 Burgess said that the same people could serve on this committee, 

but that they would be involved in two separate procedures.  Gilliss 
reported that Ms. Churchard had told them at lunch that the Arizona 
Centennial Commission’s role is to focus on large “”sanctioned 
events” vs. projects. Burgess added that Ms. Churchard is 
developing information on procedures for approval of such events. 

 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 7 
 
  iii.   Local Projects: [Attachment 6Aiii] 
   – List of potential projects and continuous up-dating 
   – Suggestions/Input? 
   – Membership 
 
 Chairman Gilliss noted that the important part of this job is, having  

identified potential projects and having prompted dissemination of   
information to organizations re participating in projects and events 
and thereafter receiving responses indicating interest (via the 
Outreach Committee), to then support project  planning and 
development.  She noted that there are potential groups and 
projects listed daily in the Courier which would indicate 
opportunities for local projects to occur throughout the Centennial 
Celebration. 

 
 Mills said that it is great to have so many options, but that she is 

concerned about diluting the celebration. Gilliss responded that it 
seems doubtful that everyone would want to participate.  She said 
that she perceives the Committee’s charge from City Council to 
engage groups city-wide, and she expressed a desire to notify as 
many groups as possible so no one will feel overlooked and so they 
can make their own decision about participating based on 
information about doing so. 

 
  iv. Media: [Attachment 6Aiv] 
   – New Title: Media/Promotion or Media & Marketing or ?? 
   – Suggestions/Input? 
   – Membership: Add Cat Moody and Mary Lin; Other? 
 
  No comments were given. 
 
  v. Executive: [Attachment 6Av] 
   – Suggestions/Input? 
   – Membership? 

–Prescott: AZ’s Centennial City – possible approach (Gilliss, 
Ruffner) 

    
 Regarding the designation of Prescott as Arizona’s Centennial City, 

Chairman Gilliss said that Ruffner had suggested the idea of 
petitioning the citizens and sending thousands of signatures to the 
Governor to approve the designation. Gilliss noted that such a 
project would likely be difficult to carry out.  In addition, Gilliss 
reported that Ms. Churchard had recommended against requesting 
the designation.  She had stated that it would not likely be granted 
as there are a number of other cities in Arizona which could more 
validly make the claim and might legally object.  Burgess added 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 8 
 

that there are five cities in the state that were incorporated in 2012.  
After some discussion, it was agreed that the Committee would 
promote their motto of “Prescott: Where I All Began.” 

 
 Referring to Ms. Churchard’s also having informed the Committee 

that AZCC intends to mount three major projects in the three former 
capital cities, with the Prescott Celebration likely to be in the fall of 
2011,  Mills said that during Ms. Churchard’s present, she found the 
timing disappointing because we would lose the three levels of 
government coming to Prescott.  Ruffner said that that was never a 
reality. 

  
Burgess stated that the dates indicated in Ms. Churchard’s 
presentation were not fixed dates, just examples, and that  other 
dates are being considered, and she noted that weather in our area 
becomes an issue. 

 
 Chairman Gilliss asked if anyone had changes/comments on the 

Standing Sub-Committees’ roles and membership lists. With no 
comments voiced, the committee descriptions were accepted, with 
the suggestions made to be implemented.  She then asked that the 
members of each subcommittee think of a few community people 
they would ask to serve with them, and to bring those names back 
to the Committee at the next meeting. 

 
      B.   Ad Hoc Committees: potential descriptions and appointments 
 
  i.   City Centennial Logo Project (Garvin, Thurston, Ezell, Lin, Gilliss) 
  ii.   State Centennial Stamp Project (Sente, Churchill) 
  iii.  Prescott: AZ’s Centennial City (Ruffner, Gilliss) 
 
 Chairman Gilliss said that iii, as listed on the agenda, would be removed 

since that issue has gone away, and she suggested a new ad hoc sub-
committee: The Viewerie. She will draft brief descriptions for each of the 
three ad hoc committees to be reviewed at the next meeting. Thurston 
asked to be placed on the Viewerie Committee. Ruffner suggested that 
they should think about including bright, brilliant, artifacts and photographs 
in the display.  

 
7.   New Business 
 

Corporate Donations for Committee Operations (Maurer) 
 
 Chairman Gilliss reported that after last month’s meeting Maurer suggested 

approaching some of the earlier and larger businesses in town to donate funds to 
cover committee operational expenses, and she asked him if had had any 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 9 
 

success with that. Maurer said that he had been not volunteering to request the 
donations, as people already head the other direction when they see him coming. 
Ruffner said that Maurer had given her the Chamber’s book and that she had 
agreed to go to such businesses for funding of a flier she is developing. She said 
that she would like to go for $5,000 or $10,000 from five or ten people and that 
Maurer had agreed to help her with that.  

 
Regarding funds for the Committee, Maurer said that he thought a simple letter 
should go out to some of the older businesses, signed by the chairman. He 
agreed to draft the letter and suggested that it should be followed up by contacts 
from members of the Committee. 

 
Tourism Summit - Relationship to Centennial Planning?  (Maurer?) 

 
Chairman Gilliss asked Maurer if a Tourism Summit planned for September 23rd 
would relate to or impact in any way the emphasis on visitorship for the 
Centennial. Maurer said that there are people in the community today who are 
suggesting that the history image of Prescott is getting old and that they would 
like to promote other aspects of the community, but that he does not think the 
history aspect will go away. 

 
 Chairman Gilliss asked how these efforts could change the use of the bed tax. 

Maurer said that he did not see any groundswell of support to dramatically 
change the bed tax allocations. If anything, there might be some effort to move 
some of it back to tourism promotion. He thinks that people need to keep in mind 
that the bed tax only generates about $500,000 a year.  

 
Mills said that she thought that attending the Summit conference would be 
worthwhile to understand the direction being proposed. She said that Ginny King 
was speaking in the afternoon, before Maurer, and that she has been one to 
suggest updating the City’s image away from the historical, western theme. 
Several Committee members voiced concern about this possibility and felt it 
would be important to attend the Summit. 

 
 Burgess noted that one of the things that none of the promotional groups in the 

City are using, which involves national publicity, is the Preserve America 
designation, which offers good promotional materials for those designated 
communities. She reported that she does not have the time or expertise to take 
advantage of the program, but that she wrote an application and got a 
designation, although very few communities are using it. Ruffner asked if 
Burgess could attend the Summit meeting and possibly make some comments. 

 
 Mills noted that Prescott is what it is and that people find Prescott charming due 

to its architecture and the courthouse square, the ambiance of the mountains and 
trees, the world’s oldest rodeo, Arizona’s Christmas City, etc. She commented 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of September 21, 2009  Page 10 
 

that those aspects of the community are significant and that they could be 
included in an update of the way the community is marketed. 

 
 Burgess noted that even the City’s Economic Development Department ignores 

the historical aspect of Prescott, including the Preserve America’s designation. 
 
8.   Adjournment 
 
 There being no further business to be discussed, the meeting of the Prescott: 

The Arizona Centennial City Committee held September 21, 2009, adjourned at 
2:56 p.m. 

 
 
 
      ___________________________________  
      Dr. Barbara Gilliss, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lindsey Mills, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


